
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

May 5, 2014 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Spring Street Zoning - Eric Cousens (15 minutes) 

B. Downtown Auburn Transportation Center update – Clint Deschene (25 minutes) 

C. Review of FY15 Municipal Budget – Clint Deschene (50 minutes) 

o Emergency Medical Services finalized budget 

Council may enter into Executive Session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C). 

o City Manager FY15 recommended budget 

o Additional Council requested budget information 

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Crowley 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

II.    Minutes   

 April 22, 2014 Regular Council Meeting. 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  

 

City Manager’s Report  

 Business licensing – pre-packaged foods  

 Committee Reports 

 Transportation 

o Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center – Mayor LaBonte 

o Lewiston Auburn Transit – Councilor Gerry 

o Airport, Railroad – Councilor Hayes 

o Bike-Ped Committee – Councilor Lee 

 Housing 

o Community Development Block Grant, Neighborhood Stabilization Program, 

Auburn Housing Authority – Councilor Gerry 

 Economic Development 

o L-A Economic Growth Council, Auburn Business Development Corporation  

 Education 

o Auburn School Committee – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Auburn Public Library – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Great Falls TV – Councilor Young  

 Environmental Services 

o Auburn Water District, Auburn Sewerage District – Councilor Crowley 

o Mid-Maine Waste Action Corp. – Councilor Walker 

 Recreation 

o Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board – Councilor Crowley 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 May 5, 2014 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 Public Safety 

o LA 911 – Councilor Walker 

             City Councilors’ Reports               

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

 Recognition - Central Maine Community College Women’s Basketball Team 

 Recognition - Central Maine Community College Men’s Basketball Team 

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

 

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

1. Order 34-04222014  
Authorizing the City Manager to expend an additional amount up $150,000 (from TIF revenue) 

for the Transportation Center to be built on Spring Street.  

 

VII.     New Business 

 

2. Public Hearing - Municipal Budget 
 

3. Order 37-05052014  
Adopting the Community Development Block Grant Budget for FFY14. 

 

4. Order 38-05052014  
Adopting the School Budget for Fiscal Year 2015. 

 

5. Order 39-05052014  
Approving the Auburn Fire Department based Emergency Medical Services (EMS) transport 

services. 

 

6. Order 40-05052014  
Approving to vacate the paper street know as Foss Street. 

 

VIII. Executive Session 

 

IX.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                             City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 May 5, 2014 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation 

or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 

interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to 

the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the 

State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to 

those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Planning Board recommended zoning map amendment in the Spring Street area to make the Central 

Business II District Zoning Boundaries consistent with the Traditional Downtown Business (DTB) District 

boundaries identified in the Future Land Use Map from the Comprehensive Plan Auburn Tomorrow.     

 

Information: The comprehensive Plan recommends that the Spring Street area zoning be changed from General 

Business Zoning, a highway and vehicle oriented zoning district, to Central Business II (CBII), a more 

traditional downtown business district to allow for a development pattern that is consistent with the historic 

downtown.  The Planning Board held a public hearing regarding this item and recommends that it be expanded 

slightly futher to the south along Spring Street.  Currently, the General Business designation requires substantial 

setbacks and esidential density is restricted to a very low suburban type density.  The proposed CBII District 

would reduce setback requirements, allow for increased residential density and potential for mixed use 

structures.  The current zoning designation is inconsistent with the existing development patterns and the 

recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

At the April 8, 2014 Planning Board hearing the Board recommended the change and further recommended that 

the change be expanded to continue along Spring Street (between Spring and the RR Tracks) to Elm Street. 

Maps showing the original proposal and the expanded area are attached.     

 

 

Financial: Allow for additional development and the associated growth in downtown valuation.    

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Comments and questions to prepare for a future public hearing.   
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Planning Board 4/8/14.   

 

 

Attachments: Spring Street Area Future Land Use Map, Spring Street Existing Zoning Map, Spring Street Area 

Planning Board Recommended Zoning, Draft Planning Board Recommendation 

Council Workshop Date:  May 5, 2014 Item  A 

Author:   Eric J. Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting 



Downtown Business District
Limited Business Development District

Downtown Enterprise DistrictCommunity Use

Great Falls Development District

Community Use

High Density Neighborhood Conservation

Main/Elm Mixed Use Corridor Main/Elm Mixed Use Corridor

COURT ST

SP
RI

NG
 ST

HIG
H 

ST

MI
NO

T A
V

PL
EA

SA
NT

 ST

DRUMMOND ST

SOUTH GOFF ST
ME

CH
AN

IC
S R

OW

LIBRARY AV

MA
IN

 ST

TURNER ST

UN
IO

N 
ST

GOFF ST

SOUTH ST

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST
³

Spring Street Area 
Future Land Use 



GENERAL BUSINESS

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

CENTRAL BUSINESS II

URBAN RESIDENTIAL
CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS I

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

COURT ST

SP
RI

NG
 ST

HIG
H 

ST

MI
NO

T A
V

PL
EA

SA
NT

 ST

DRUMMOND ST

SO
UT

H 
GO

FF
 ST

ME
CH

AN
IC

S R
OW

LIBRARY AV

MA
IN

 ST

TURNER STUN
IO

N 
ST

GOFF ST

SOUTH ST

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST

DR
UM

MO
ND

 C
T

This map was created by Auburn's GIS
Department. While every effort has 
been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any responsibility
for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no
warranties which accompany this 
product. Users of the information 
displayed on this map are strongly 
cautioned to verify all information 
before making any decisions.

40 0 40 80 12016020
Feet

City of Auburn
Department of
Planning and Permitting
60 Court Street
Auburn, ME  04210
www.auburnmaine.gov
207-333-6601

³

Spring Street Area Zoning



URBAN RESIDENTIAL

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

GENERAL BUSINESS

CENTRAL BUSINESS II

CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS I

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN
URBAN RESIDENTIAL

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

COURT

HIG
H

MI
NO

T

ELM

MA
IN

SP
RI

NG

GOFF PL
EA

SA
NT

LAKE

AUBURN

FOREST

RI
VE

RW
AL

KVINE

HARRIS

DRUMMOND

ACADEMY

TURNER

UN
IO

N

FAIRMOUNT

LIBRARY

JAMES

ME
CH

AN
IC

S

HAMPSHIRE

MI
LL

ER

GREAT FALLS

CL
IFF

MY
RT

LE

TR
OY

HIGHLAND

SOUTH

HASKELL

PROSPECT

RA
ILR

OA
D

BE
AC

ON

LONGLEY MEMORIAL

MA
IN

MI
LL

ER

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

GENERAL BUSINESS

DOWNTOWN ENTERPRISE

CENTRAL BUSINESS III

CENTRAL BUSINESS ICENTRAL BUSINESS II
MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS

MULTI-FAMILY URBAN

77

2

95

8

67

1

222
222
222

22

222 2

2

2

41

14

60

164277

43

62

49

7

15

1

74

81

112

62

10

16

62

60

292
7

40

209

100

23

19

284

3131
31
31

10
12

282

150

7

1

24

2020

131

20

71

169

165

26

15

320

23

268

28

83

316

88

78

88

256

31

15

178

1

71

87

80

214

112

63

95

40
15

49

323

21

129

17

35

23

11

300

11

13

76

256

8

156

5

27

42

90

35

6

220

33

9

14

31

51

7

115

9

24

88

236

8

110

20

137

31

91

50

30

133

14

29

9

33

74

24

4

54

56

210

52

199

262

17

40

11

350

79

96

37

60

29

64

37

79

32

27

15

75

27

46

36

22

14
18

201

217

7510

19

5

179

108

327

68

15

243

24

223

23

30

22

31

261

57

23

233

28

48

6432

96

17

28

72

49

34

129

46

16

33

60

117

22

48

20

7

244

52

193

247

106

16

138

35

340

142
146

28

32

84

12

12

20

24
99

80
186

71

78

38

37

99

27

25

30

2023

178

250

325

21

47

60

120

67

32

33

81 118
121

58

57

94

138 78

107

85

124

111

158 65

185133

103

3
26

291

31

8

2

9

83

72

11

9

2

34

90

184

6229

95

18

15

29

22

21

39

8

35

27

2915

31

12

17

10
3125

86

271

150

120

11

43

358

270
355

139

338

15

55

43

132

158 143

353

20

88

123

155
147

151

143

121

103

132

127
128

102

20

159

16

120112

1443

9

44

115

53

57

126

8

88

86

92

35

11

154

42

66

21

48 41 2042

86

This map was created by Auburn's GIS
Department. While every effort has 
been made to ensure that these data
are accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any responsibility
for any errors, omissions, or positional 
accuracy, and therefore, there are no
warranties which accompany this 
product. Users of the information 
displayed on this map are strongly 
cautioned to verify all information 
before making any decisions.

90 0 90 180 270 36045
Feet

City of Auburn
Department of
Planning and Permitting
60 Court Street
Auburn, ME  04210
www.auburnmaine.gov
207-333-6601³ Spring Street Area Proposed Zoning

Rev: 4/14/14  DMG

Legend
Spring St Area Proposed Zoning
       Zoning Districts

AG - Agriculture and Resource Protection
CBD I - Central Business District I
CBD II - Central Business District II
CBD III - Central Business District III
DE - Downtown Enterprise
GB - General Business
GB II - General Business II
ID - Industrial
LDCR - Low Density Country Residential
MFS - Multi-Family Suburban
MFU - Multi-Family Urban
NB - Neighborhood Business
RR - Rural Residential
SR - Suburban Residential
UR - Urban Residential
Properties Proposed for Re-zoning



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Planning & Permitting 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Planning Board Report 

 

 

To:   Auburn Planning Board  

 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting 

 

Re:  Zoning map amendment in the Spring Street area to make the Central Business II District 

Zoning Boundaries consistent with the Traditional Downtown Business (DTB) District 

boundaries identified in the Future Land Use Map from the Comprehensive Plan Auburn 

Tomorrow.  The zoning change includes the properties located at 178 Court St. (240-264), 184 

Court St. (240-265), 62 Spring St. (240-257), 71 Spring St. (240-263), 88 Spring St. (240-258), 

95 Spring St. (240-262), 75 Pleasant St. (240-253) and 83 Pleasant St. (240-252).   

 

Date: April 1, 2014 

    

I. PROPOSAL 

 

The comprehensive Plan recommends that the Spring Street area zoning be changed from 

General Business Zoning, a highway and vehicle oriented zoning district, to Central Business II 

(CBII), a more traditional downtown business district to allow for a development pattern that is 

consistent with the historic downtown.  Currently, the General Business designation requires 

setbacks of 25 feet at the front and sides of a parcel and 35 feet at the rear of the lot.  Residential 

density is restricted to a very low suburban density, for example, a four unit building would 

currently require a 16,000 square foot lot.  The proposed CBII District would reduce setback 

requirements, allow for increased residential density and mixed use structures.  The current 

zoning designation is inconsistent with the existing development patterns and the 

recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

In the surrounding downtown area a majority of our traditional downtown is located within the 

CB district. The Central Business district is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan DTB 

designation and allows for higher density of residential uses, use of shared and public parking for 

new development and reduced building setbacks.  The comprehensive plan recommends that we 

not only allow buildings to be located close to the street to be consistent with existing 

development patterns in this area, but suggests that we require it.  At this time, staff recommends 

that we adjust the zoning boundaries to include the Spring Street area which will allow for 

development to conform to existing development patterns.  A more in depth process, with 

extensive public outreach and participation that considers changing the name and some of the 

standards of the CB district will follow this summer.  This change is a step towards consistency 

with the plan.  Below is the excerpt for the Comprehensive plan describing the Traditional 

Downtown Business District.   

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Traditional Downtown Business District (DTB) 
Objective – Maintain the character and overall development pattern of the historic downtown 
area while allowing for the creative use, reuse and redevelopment of property within the 
district (see Figures 2.3 and 2.4). 
 
Allowed Uses – The following general types of uses should be allowed within the Traditional 
Downtown Business District: 
• small to moderate size retail uses 
• personal and business services 
• restaurants and cafes 
• office uses including business and professional offices 
• hotel, motels, inns, and bed & breakfast establishments 
• fully enclosed light manufacturing 
• community services and facilities 
• recreational facilities 
• a wide range of residential uses including housing on the upper floors of mixed‐use 
buildings and senior housing 
 
Development Standards – The development standards in the Traditional Downtown Business 
District should require that alterations to existing buildings and new buildings maintain the 
established pattern of development, including the placement of the building on the lot. Where 
there is an established pattern with respect to the front setback of buildings, a new or altered 
building should be required to conform to the established pattern. Any area between the front 
of the building and the street should be required to be used for pedestrian purposes, including 
outdoor spaces; vehicle use should be prohibited. Parking should be required to be located at 
the side or rear of the building, but the minimum parking requirement should be reduced, and 
new or redeveloped properties should be allowed to count the use of shared or public parking 
to meet the standard. 
 
Residential development and redevelopment should be allowed at a maximum density of 18‐24 
units per acre, with a provision that small units or units for the elderly be treated as a fraction of 
a unit based on the size of the unit or the number of bedrooms in the unit. The 
reuse/reconfiguration of the space within existing buildings for residential purposes should be 
allowed without consideration of the density/lot size requirements, provided that the building will 
be renovated, be compatible with the neighborhood, and meet the City’s requirements for 
residential units including the provision of appropriate parking and green space. Buildings with 
both residential and nonresidential uses should be allowed to consider shared parking to meet 
their parking requirements. 
 

Below is a list of the parcels affected by the proposed change.  All of the developed parcels are 

nonconforming with respect to one or more dimensional standard including minimum lot size, 

residential density and setback requirements of the General Business zone and would become 

conforming , or at least more conforming, with the proposed map amendment.   
 

Location Owner Name Owner City State Land Use 

178 COURT ST FIRST STATES INVESTORS 5200 LL FORT WORTH TX Pers/Prof Service 

71 SPRING ST HERITAGE COURT INC LEWISTON ME Multi-Family (43) 

95 SPRING ST ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC PORTLAND ME Retail Food 



Page 3 of 3 

 

184 COURT ST FIRST STATES INVESTORS 5200 LL FORT WORTH TX Commercial Parking/ATM 

75 PLEASANT ST VERRILL  BERYL RAE AUBURN ME Multi-Family (8) 

83 PLEASANT ST 83 REALTY LLC AUBURN ME Office 

88 SPRING ST ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC PORTLAND ME Commercial Parking 

62 SPRING ST LYNCH BROTHERS INC AUBURN ME Mixed Use 
 

 It should be noted that 

property and development 

value in this neighborhood is 

higher than average for the 

City and increased 

development that would be 

allowed pursuant to the change 

would help increase that value 

further.  Services can easily be 

provided efficiently to the 

urban core of the City and 

development here should be encouraged as the Comprehensive Plan recommends. Above is a 

chart showing average existing development value per acre including assessed building value for 

the affected properties.  These are current assessed values and as noted above, the change would 

allow for more intensive and pedestrian friendly development that would likely increase values 

over time as we have seen in the existing Central Business District.  

 

II.     PLANNING FINDINGS / CONSIDERATIONS: 

 

Staff  evaluated the proposed rezoning and suggests the following findings:  

 

A. The City’s Future Land Use Map shows the area as “Traditional Downtown Business 

District”.  The Central Business District II zoning designation is consistent with the future 

land use map DTB district and existing zoning along Court Street. 

B. The proposed amendment to the zoning map is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   

  

III. RECOMMENDATION:   

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Board forward a favorable recommendation to the City Council 

on the proposed zoning map amendment from General Business Zoning District to Central Business 

District for properties located at 178 Court St. (240-264), 184 Court St. (240-265), 62 Spring St. 

(240-257), 71 Spring St. (240-263), 88 Spring St. (240-258), 95 Spring St. (240-262), 75 Pleasant St. 

(240-253) and 83 Pleasant St. (240-252), based on the above findings.   

 

 

 

 

Eric Cousens 

Director of Planning and Permitting 

Location Total Value Total Acres Avg Value Per Acre 

178 COURT ST  952000  0.54  $                1,762,963  

71 SPRING ST  1962300  0.5  $                3,924,600  

95 SPRING ST  2996800  3.47  $                   863,631  

184 COURT ST  114900  0.33  $                   348,182  

75 PLEASANT ST  233600  0.15  $                1,557,333  

83 PLEASANT ST  444300  0.42  $                1,057,857  

88 SPRING ST  120700  0.41  $                   294,390  

62 SPRING ST  495100  0.81  $                   611,235  



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:     Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Update and Additional Funding of the Downtown Transportation Center 

 

Information:  

The Council requested status updates on the project prior to funding additional costs. Enclosed is a current 

rendering and a current schedule of the project which still needs to be updated. 

 

The scheduled update is pending negotiations with Hannaford and the City Manager. The City Manager and 

Hannaford have a meeting on May 2, 2014. The City Manager will have a verbal update as to the results of 

the meeting and how it is impacted the project schedule. 

 

Finally, the City of Auburn has committed $250,000 toward this project. Based on estimated construction 

costs we will have a potential shortfall. To ensure the project is completed in accordance with City Council 

directive we are requesting an additional amount of up to $150,000 to be taken from TIF funds per the 

estimate received from the architect. 

 

Financial: $250,000 has been committed thus far and we will be seeking additional funds of up to $150,000 

from TIF revenue. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion/action 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: 4/22/2014 City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments:   

DATC with Cable Bracing 

Schedule 

4-29-2014 Public Notice  

Order 34-04222014   

Council Workshop Date:  May 5, 2014 Order  34-04222014 

Author:   Clinton Deschene 



3-19-14
3D VIEWSDOWNTOWN AUBURN TRANSPORTATION CENTER

SCALE:
1 3D VIEW - FROM SOUTH

SCALE:
2 3D VIEW - FROM NORTH EAST

SCALE:
3 3D VIEW - FROM SOUTH WEST

SCALE:
4 3D VIEW - FROM EAST



 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  Auburn City Council 

Re:  Downtown Auburn Transportation Center 

Dt:  May 1, 2014 
 
 
Following is the general timeline for completion of design and construction of the Downtown 
Auburn Transportation Center, upon finalization of lease agreement with Hannaford.  The 
design team of Casco Bay Engineering and Harriman Associates has submitted 50% design 
plans, and the Preliminary Design Report. They are continuing their efforts on the finalization of 
the plans and specifications.  
 
This general timeline is based on timeframes required by the funding sources, and general 
industry standards. 
 
Final Plans & Specifications   6 weeks after final lease 
Final Bid Documents   2 weeks after final plans 
Advertise Project   3 weeks advertise period 
Award Construction   2 weeks after bid date 
Begin Construction   2 – 3 weeks after award 
Construction    6 – 9 months (dependent upon season, weather, etc.) 
 
This schedule anticipates approximately 4 months after the lease is finalized to complete 
design, advertise and award the construction. The construction itself could take 6 to 9 months.  
The Federal Transit Administration has extended the deadline of the grant for this project, which 
will accommodate this anticipated schedule. 
 
 
 



CITY OF AUBURN 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

The City of Auburn will be holding a public meeting to present the design of the Downtown Auburn 

Transportation Center (DATC), as well as the request for an additional $150,000 in local funds.  The 

DATC is to be located adjacent to Hannaford Supermarket on Spring Street.  A public meeting will be 

held as part of the Auburn City Council meeting on Monday, May 5, 2014 at 7:00 P.M., in the Council 

Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street.  The Public is invited to attend and provide comments 

and ask questions concerning the DATC.  

Auburn Hall is accessible for individuals with disabilities. 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 34-04222014 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council authorize the City Manager to expend an additional amount up to 

$150,000 for the Transportation Center to be built on Spring St. These funds will come from TIF revenue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Budget Workshop – Review of City Manager FY15 Budget  

 

Information: The City Manager presented the FY15 budget in full on April 7, 2014. The discussion tonight is 

to further review the budget that was presented including the EMS (Emergency Medical Services) finalized 

budget, the City Manager’s recommended budget, and additional Council requested budget information.  Part of 

this will include a budget summary of the requested Council cuts.  Another is a City Manager recommended 

amendment to his proposed budget. 

 

Financial: Budget 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion  

 

Previous Meetings and History: Continuation of budget presentations and discussions which began at the 

2/20/2014 Council Workshop. 

 

Attachments:  

Council workshop Date:  May 5, 2014 Item  C 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 







City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Finance Department 

60 Court Street  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      

 

 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 
Date: May 1, 2014 
 
RE: Emergency Medical Transport Funding Recommendations 
 
In reviewing the implementation of Emergency Medical Service Transport, I have evaluated the Fire Department 
as a whole and I have come up with the following recommendations. 
 
Current Fire Department Structure VS Proposed Structure 

Difference

Personnel

Chief 1 78,500.00$       1 78,500.00$            

Deputy Chief 1 77,156.00$       1 77,156.00$            

Deputy Chief (New) 0 -$                    1 85,000.00$            

Fire Prevention Officer 1 50,224.00$       1 50,224.00$            

Battalion Chief 4 267,025.00$     4 267,025.00$          

Captain 4 242,065.00$     4 242,065.00$          

Lieutenant 12 683,414.00$     12 683,414.00$          

Firefighters 40 1,716,024.00$ 40 1,716,024.00$      

TOTAL 3,114,408.00$ 3,199,408.00$      85,000.00$       

Current Structure Proposed Structure

 
 
Not only did I look at the personnel piece, I also looked at the work assignment piece. This is listed below. 

Assingnments

Engine #1 3 3

Engine #2 3 3

Engine #3 3 -                           

Tower #1 / Quint 3 3.25

Float 1 1

Ambulance #1 -                      2

Ambulance #2 -                      1.75

Shifts X 4 X 4

TOTAL 52 56

Current Staffing 56

Personnel Required

 
My recommendation is that we replace the ladder truck with a Quint which allows us to take engine #3 out of 
front line service. This will provide enough staff to man 2 ambulances without hiring new personnel.   However 



 2 

the second ambulance and Quint will share one person with call volume clearly showing that they are primarily 
on an ambulance.   
 
Below are the increased costs associated with the implementation of the EMS Transport Program. 

Increased Costs to Implement EMS Transport

Payroll and Benefits 85,000.00$            

Professional Fees 163,100.00$          

Supplies 61,000.00$            

Vehicle Expenses 175,000.00$          

Other Program Expenses 50,000.00$            

Administrative Expenses 8,000.00$              

Contingency  8% ` 43,368.00$            

Capital Reserve 135,000.00$          

TOTAL 720,468.00$          

ESTIMATED REVENUE (2013 United Data - $100,000) 987,551.00$          

EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 267,083.00$           
 
I would recommend we add the $553,068720,468 expenditures to the budget and require the program to 
reimburse the total expenditures made by the general fund from revenues collected. Any revenue collected over 
the expenditures should be split no more than 50/50 between the general fund and a special revenue fund that 
would be established as a capital reserve account and used to purchase fire department capital in the future. I 
would also recommend that we limit the amount that can be transferred to the capital reserve account per fiscal 
year to $150,000.  (This budget contemplates $135,000 per year.) 

CONCLUSION 
 
Understanding all impacts or the risks of this operation comes down to one large item and two smaller items.  
 
The big issue is staffing reductions to fire in order to implement EMS with no additional staffing while replacing a 
Tower and Ladder with a Quint.  In order to have a contingency plan it must be fully disclosed that this model 
proposed may be short on staff.  The easiest way to plan for this is the acknowledgement that 4 additional fire 
fighters at a total cost of $220,000 should be planned on being restored.  However, implementing EMS must 
make fiscal sense to the community.  Once the operations prove itself and net revenues reach $460,000 using 
the above analysis, 4 firefighters will be hired to supplement staffing. 
 
Next, will the quality of EMS service diminish?  My response to this is absolutely no.  The data shows Auburn Fire 
arrives on scene on average of 4 minutes.  United arrives in 7 minutes.  This means transports will begin on 
average to the hospital 3 minutes quicker.    
 
Finally, will the ISO rating of the fire department drop?  This is the hardest to answer with certainty but per 
information from  ISO and Chief Roma’s professional review, yes it will.  How much or for how long is not certain 
but the model proposed exchanges an engine and tower for a Quint.  Per ISO this reduces our ladder value by 
50% and puts Auburn into the next lowest bracket.  The reason this is done is to use the staff of one of these 
pieces of equipment to run 2 ambulances. 



City of Auburn 
Recycling Recommendation  
May 5, 2014 

Page 1 of 1 
 

RECYCLING 
 
The City Manager Budget for 2015 recommended a voluntary drop-off recycling program.  Based upon input 
since that budget recommendation, I am requesting the Council amend the budget. 

Recommendation: 
 

Amend the FY 2015 budget to increase expenditures by $102,000 for contracted, bi-weekly 
recycling.  $96,900 would be allocated for the contract offer from Pine Tree waste.  The remaining 
$5,100 would be allocated for supplies and marketing to reinitiate a recycling program.  This action 
will also amend the current solid waste contract to provide solid waste and recycling at all schools in 
Auburn at the current budgeted costs. 
 
Additionally, the Council should provide staff with a budgetary, policy direction to implement a 
curbside, automated trash and recycling service.  The following terms must be accepted as part of 
the process: 
 

1. An automated trash and recycling program will require at least 5 months to implement from 
the date a signed contract is in place.  

2. An automated trash and recycling program must be implemented in the spring or summer, 
never in late fall or winter. 

3. The City must adopt an ordinance on solid waste and recycling before entering into an 
automated contract for service. 

4. In order to implement an automated service in 2015, the ordinance and contract must be 
executed no later than January 15, 2015. 

5. In order to implement automated service in 2016, the ordinance and contract must be 
executed no later than January 15, 2016. 

6. If an automated service is not implemented by either January 15, 2015 or January 15, 2016, 
the current, solid waste contract will expire and a new joint bid for both services will be 
necessary. 

Outstanding Items: 
 

1. The City needs to work with Pine Tree waste to execute a one-year recycling contract.  
Included should be a discussion of types of bins that could be purchased by residents and if 
the automated bins are okay for manual pick up. 

2. The City needs to work with private sector business to consider sponsorships and delivery of 
bins. 

3. After the budget for FY 2015 is approved, staff must reconvene the committee to develop 
and implement an educational and marketing campaign. 

 
 



BUDGET REDUCTIONS LIST ‐ CITY MANAGER'S RESOLVE

5/1/2014

Expenditure Revenue

Reductions Increases

Finance

Training & Tuition (500.00)$                      

Revenue Increase 5,000.00$                  

City Clerk

Regular Salaries (23,946.00)$                 

Training (200.00)$                      

Travel & Mileage (200.00)$                      

Office Supplies (250.00)$                      

Record Restoration (5,000.00)$                   

Fire

Fire at 0% (73,000.00)$                 

EMS Implementation 720,468.00$                 987,551.00$              

Health and Social Services

Reduce Budget to FY14 (38,399.00)$                 

Human Resources

Medical Consulting in Fringe (30,000.00)$                 

ICT

Seven Tablet Computers (4,500.00)$                   

Library (12,846.00)$                 

Parking Program 55,000.00$                

Police

Animal Control (15,142.00)$                 

Vehicle Purchases (94,000.00)$                 

Special Equipment (49,500.00)$                 

Increase Revenue 45,000.00$                

Public Services

Recycling 102,000.00$                

Operational Cuts (99,300.00)$                 

Intergovernmental

Airport (8,750.00)$                   

Transit (1,648.00)$                   

LA911 (12,535.00)$                 

LAEGC (15,792.00)$                 

CIP ‐  Operational

Oper. To Bond (169,564.00)$              

Staff Reductions

MISC (335,000.00)$              

Rec Program Leader‐Spec Rev Fund 41,720.00$                

(167,604.00)$               1,134,271.00$            (1,301,875.00)$  

1,700,000.00$   

398,125.00$      



4:25 PM 5/1/2014

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL
ADOPTED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 $ Change % Change

City Expenses
Operating Expenses 23,586,783 25,290,863 25,146,192 1,704,080 7.22%
Debt Service/TIF 8,877,307 8,847,968 8,847,968 (29,339) -0.33%
Intergovernmental 3,676,418 3,746,636 3,723,703 70,218 1.91%

Total City Expenses 36,140,508 37,885,467 37,717,863 1,744,959 4.83%
School Expenses

Operating Expenses 34,456,042 35,882,953 35,534,193 1,426,911 4.14%
Debt Service 2,671,986 2,707,131 2,707,130 35,145 1.32%

Total School Expenses 37,128,028 38,590,084 38,241,323 1,462,056 3.94%
Total Expenses 73,268,536 76,475,551 75,959,186 3,207,015 4.38%
Less: Non-Tax Revenues

City 10,710,337 11,256,313 12,390,584 545,976 5.10%
School 21,766,728 22,140,765 22,092,693 374,037 1.72%
Total Non-Tax Revenues 32,477,065 33,397,078 34,483,277 920,013 2.83%

Tax Levy
City 23,419,158 24,582,274 23,280,399 1,163,116 4.97%
School 15,361,300 16,449,319 16,148,630 1,088,019 7.08%
County 2,029,513 2,046,880 2,046,880 17,367 0.86%
Overlay 166,917

Total Tax Levy 40,809,971 43,078,473 41,475,909 2,268,502 5.56%
Total Assessed Value 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383
Tax Rate

City 11.76 12.26 11.61 (0.15) -1.30%
School 7.66 8.20 8.05 0.39 5.13%
County 1.01 1.02 1.02 0.01 0.86%

Total 20.43 21.48 20.68 0.25 1.22%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

1



4:23 PM 5/1/2014

Updated per City Managers Recommended Amendments
COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Administration
Assessing 172,277 173,245 191,970 177,320 177,320 5,043 2.93%
City Clerk 162,045 171,080 194,214 170,243 140,647 (21,398) -13.20%
City Manager 238,903 237,313 319,505 270,750 270,750 31,847 13.33%
Economic Development 318,933 119,705 385,755 359,500 343,708 24,775 7.77%
Finance 405,976 409,215 418,675 428,315 427,815 21,839 5.38%
Human Resources 139,566 137,778 139,578 139,578 139,578 12 0.01%
ICT 395,350 374,853 422,979 418,329 413,829 18,479 4.67%
Legal Services 100,000 80,000 85,000 65,000 65,000 (35,000) -35.00%
Mayor & Council 71,079 72,065 78,532 78,532 78,532 7,453 10.49%

Total Administration 2,004,129 1,775,254 2,236,208 2,107,567 2,057,179 53,050 2.65%

Community Services
Health & Social Services
  Administration 83,557 83,557 86,972 86,972 86,972 3,415 4.09%
  Assistance 105,982 161,684 144,381 144,381 105,982 0 0.00%
Planning & Permitting 775,230 795,030 915,544 804,494 804,494 29,264 3.77%
Public Library 927,237 927,237 942,407 941,192 928,346 1,109 0.12%

Total Community Services 1,892,006 1,967,508 2,089,304 1,977,039 1,925,794 33,788 1.79%

Fiscal Services
Debt Service 6,321,584 6,301,531 6,263,936 6,263,936 6,263,936 (57,648) -0.91%
Emergency Reserve 375,289 0 375,289 375,289 375,289 0 0.00%
Facilities 715,667 678,552 729,870 698,335 698,335 (17,332) -2.42%
Transfer to TIF 2,555,723 2,584,032 2,584,032 2,584,032 2,584,032 28,309 1.11%
Fringe Benefits 4,397,585 4,500,000 4,945,117 4,945,117 4,580,117 182,532 4.15%
Workers' Compensation 431,446 415,000 468,081 468,081 468,081 36,635 8.49%

Total Fiscal Services 14,797,294 14,479,115 15,366,325 15,334,790 14,969,790 172,496 1.17%

Public Safety
Fire 4,024,789 4,113,156 4,300,126 4,120,633 4,768,101 743,312 18.47%
Police 3,589,583 3,324,191 3,958,119 3,884,183 3,725,541 135,958 3.79%

Total Public Safety 7,614,372 7,437,347 8,258,245 8,004,816 8,493,642 879,270 11.55%

Public Services
Public Services 5,577,954 5,521,226 5,890,448 5,780,179 5,782,879 204,925 3.67%
Water & Sewer 558,835 558,835 599,013 599,013 599,013 40,178 7.19%

Total Public Works 6,136,789 6,080,061 6,489,461 6,379,192 6,381,892 245,103 3.99%

Capital Improvement Projects
City Clerk (see Clerk Budget) 18,500 0 0 0 (18,500) -100.00%
Engineering-Paving 100,000 0 0 0 0.00%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

1



4:23 PM 5/1/2014

Updated per City Managers Recommended Amendments
COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

Fire 0 83,000 83,000 10,000 10,000 0.00%
LA 911 17,863 0 17,863 17,863 0.00%
Planning 98,000 98,000 98,000 98,000 0.00%
PW 63,700 63,700 0 0 0.00%
Recreation 20,500 20,500 20,500 20,500 0.00%
Airport 25,000 25,000 0 0 0.00%
Library 19,500 0 45,227 45,227 19,500 0 0.00%

Total CIP 38,000 0 453,290 335,427 165,863 127,863 336.48%

Total Municipal 32,482,590 31,739,285 34,892,833 34,138,831 33,994,160 1,511,570 4.65%

Intergovernmental Programs
County Taxes 2,029,513 2,006,244 2,046,880 2,046,880 2,046,880 17,367 0.86%
Tax Sharing 270,000 288,593 270,000 270,000 270,000 0 0.00%
Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 105,000 105,000 113,750 113,750 105,000 0 0.00%
Community Little Theater 0 20,160 0 0 0 0.00%
LA Arts 0 0 17,064 17,064 17,064 17,064 0.00%
Museum LA 0 0 37,500 0 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aub Economic Growth Council (see EconDev) 0 160,687 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Lew-Aug Transit Committee 235,496 235,548 237,021 237,021 235,373 (123) -0.05%
Lew-Aub 911 Communications Center 1,036,409 1,035,381 1,093,533 1,061,921 1,049,386 12,977 1.25%

Total Intergovernmental Programs 3,676,418 3,851,613 3,815,748 3,746,636 3,723,703 47,285 1.29%

Grand Total Municipal 36,140,508 35,590,898 38,708,581 37,885,467 37,717,863 1,577,355 4.36%

     Education Operation 34,456,042 33,419,500 36,337,263 35,882,953 35,534,193 1,078,151 3.13%
     Education Debt Service 2,671,986 2,483,582 2,707,131 2,707,131 2,707,130 35,144 1.32%
Total School 37,128,028 35,903,082 39,044,394 38,590,084 38,241,323 1,113,295 3.00%

Total Budget 73,268,536 71,493,980 77,752,975 76,475,551 75,959,186 2,690,650 3.67%

        Non-Property Tax Revenue
                             Municipal 10,710,337 11,256,313 11,256,313 12,390,584 1,680,247 15.69%
                             Education 21,766,728 22,140,765 22,140,765 22,092,693 325,965 1.50%

2



4:23 PM 5/1/2014

Updated per City Managers Recommended Amendments
COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

                             Total 32,477,065 33,397,078 33,397,078 34,483,277 2,006,212 6.18%

        Property Tax Dollars Needed
                             Municipal 25,448,671 27,452,268 26,629,154 25,327,279 (121,392) -0.48%
                             Education 15,361,300 16,903,629 16,449,319 16,148,630 787,330 5.13%
                             Total 40,809,971 44,355,897 43,078,473 41,475,909 665,938 1.63%

Property Tax Rate 20.43 22.11 21.48 20.68 0.25 1.22%
    Based on Assessed Values of : 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383 2,005,721,383

Property Tax Rate
     Municipal Tax Rate 12.77 $13.69 $13.28 $12.63 (0.14) -1.12%
     Education Tax Rate 7.66 $8.43 $8.20 $8.05 0.39 5.11%

20.43 22.11 21.48 20.68 0.25 1.22%

3



5/1/2014

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

General Government
Homestead Exemption Reimbursement                       482,575       495,000        495,000           12,425          2.57%
Personal Property Reimbursement 1,230,000    1,350,000     1,350,000        120,000        0.00%
Tree Growth Reimbursement 10,000         10,000          10,000             -                    0.00%
Veterans Reimbursement 18,000         18,000          18,000             -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement 8,000           8,000            8,000               -                    0.00%
In Lieu of Taxes                                         80,000         80,000          80,000             -                    0.00%
Excise Tax-Vehicles                                      3,050,000    3,160,000     3,160,000        110,000        3.61%
Excise Tax-Boats 15,000         15,000          15,000             -                    0.00%
Excise Tax-Aircraft 3,500           10,000          10,000             6,500            185.71%
State Revenue Sharing                                    1,649,470    1,649,470     1,649,470        -                    0.00%
Other State Aid                                          4,000           4,000            4,000               -                    0.00%
Penalties & Interest                                     140,000       140,000        145,000           5,000            3.57%
Investment Income                                        20,000         10,000          10,000             (10,000)         -50.00%
Interest from Bonds                                      2,000           2,000            2,000               -                    0.00%
Transfer in from TIF 500,000       500,000        500,000           -                    0.00%
Transfer in from Special Revenue Funds 20,000         310,000        310,000           290,000        1450.00%
Transfer in from Drug Forfeiture Funds -                   -                    45,000             45,000          0.00%
Transfer in from Parking Program -                   -                    55,000             55,000          0.00%
Rental Income (Intermodal) 122,000       122,000        122,000           -                    0.00%
Sale of Property                                         20,000         20,000          20,000             -                    0.00%
Tax Sharing Revenue                                      155,000       155,000        155,000           -                    0.00%
Cable Television Franchise                               126,000       126,000        126,000           -                    0.00%
MMWAC Host Fees                                          204,000       206,000        206,000           2,000            0.98%
Energy Efficiency 2,000           -                    -                       (2,000)           -100.00%
Reimbursement-Other 10,000         10,000          10,000             -                    0.00%
Utility Reimbursement 27,500         27,500          27,500             -                    0.00%
Unclassified 7,500           10,000          10,000             2,500            33.33%
Fund Balance Contribution 1,350,000    1,350,000     1,350,000        -                    0.00%

Total General Government 9,256,545    9,787,970     9,892,970        636,425        6.88%

City Clerk
Hunting/Fishing/Dogs                                     2,000           2,000            2,000               -                    0.00%
Neutered Animals                                         3,000           3,000            3,000               -                    0.00%
Voter Reg List                                           100              100               100                  -                    0.00%
Clerk/Sale of Copies                                     200              200               200                  -                    0.00%
City Clerk Notary                                        1,800           1,800            1,800               -                    0.00%
Banner Hanging Fee                                       3,300           3,300            3,300               -                    0.00%
Garage Sale Permits -                   3,000            3,000               3,000            0.00%

1



5/1/2014

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Commercial License                                       40,000         40,000          40,000             -                    0.00%
Taxi License                                             3,000           4,000            4,000               1,000            33.33%
Marriage License                                         5,000           5,000            5,000               -                    0.00%
Birth/Death/Marriage Cert                                25,000         25,000          25,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Burial                                         7,000           7,000            7,000               -                    0.00%
Fines-Dog                                                3,000           3,000            3,000               -                    0.00%

Total City Clerk 93,400         97,400          97,400             4,000            4.28%

Finance
Reg - Vehicles                                           60,000         60,000          60,000             -                    0.00%

Total Finance 60,000         60,000          60,000             -                    0.00%

Community Services-ICT
GIS/Data & Maps                                          20                20                 20                    -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-ICT 20                20                 20                    -                    0.00%

Assessing
Maps & Copies                                            20                20                 20                    -                    0.00%

Total Assessing 20                20                 20                    -                    0.00%

Health & Social Services
GA Reimbursement                                         53,000         70,000          70,000             17,000          32.08%

Total Health & Social Services 53,000         70,000          70,000             17,000          32.08%

Planning & Permitting
Maps & Copies                                            500              500               500                  -                    0.00%
Departmental Reviews 16,000         16,000          16,000             -                    0.00%
Planning/Codes & Ordinance                               3,000           -                    -                       (3,000)           -100.00%
Fire Alarm Inspections                                   29,000         29,000          29,000             -                    0.00%
Citation Ordinance                                       2,000           2,000            2,000               -                    0.00%
Advertising Costs 5,000           5,000            5,000               -                    0.00%
Lisbon Reimbursement for Services 10,000         10,000          10,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Building                                       110,000       110,000        110,000           -                    0.00%
CDBG Reimbursement for Services 50,000         50,000          50,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Electrical                                     16,000         16,000          16,000             -                    0.00%
Permits - Plumbing                                       10,500         10,500          10,500             -                    0.00%
Permits - Sign                                           5,000           5,000            5,000               -                    0.00%

Total Planning & Permitting 257,000       254,000        254,000           (3,000)           -1.17%

Parks & Recreation

2



5/1/2014

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Arena -                   -                    -                       -                    0.00%
Recreation Program (for Program Leader)                   -                   -                    41,720             41,720          0.00%

Total Parks & Recreation -                   -                    41,720             41,720          0.00%

Community Services-Engineering
Fees - Eng-Misc                                          200              -                    -                       (200)              -100.00%
Fees - Inspection                                        10,000         5,000            5,000               (5,000)           -50.00%
Fees - Drive Opening                                     200              200               200                  -                    0.00%
Fees - Bid Documents 1,000           1,000            1,000               -                    0.00%
Permits - Fill                                           1,000           1,000            1,000               -                    0.00%
Permits - Street Opening                                 25,000         25,000          25,000             -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-Engineering 37,400         32,200          32,200             (5,200)           -13.90%

Fire Department
Copies of Reports                                        200              200               200                  -                    0.00%
Inspections 10,000         -                    -                       (10,000)         -100.00%
EMS Transport -                   -                    987,551           987,551        0.00%
EMS Agreement                                         100,000       -                    -                       (100,000)       -100.00%
Salvage Calls                                            100              100               100                  -                    0.00%
Permits - Oil Burner                                     800              800               800                  -                    0.00%

Total Fire Department 111,100       1,100            988,651           877,551        789.87%

Police Department
Accident & Police                                        13,000         13,000          13,000             -                    0.00%
Court                                                    15,000         15,000          15,000             -                    0.00%
Photos & Tapes                                           500              2,000            2,000               1,500            300.00%
False Alarms                                             10,000         15,000          15,000             5,000            50.00%
Animal Impound 300              1,000            1,000               700               233.33%
Veh Rel/Non Driver                                       6,000           2,000            2,000               (4,000)           -66.67%
Veh Rel/Driver License                                   15,000         11,000          11,000             (4,000)           -26.67%
ARRA Cops Grant -                   119,351        119,351           119,351        0.00%
MDEA Reimbursement 60,102         60,102          60,102             -                    0.00%
School Resource Officers 173,150       173,150        173,150           -                    0.00%
Computer Crimes 56,000         72,000          72,000             16,000          28.57%
Permits - Alarms 5,000           -                    -                       (5,000)           -100.00%
Permits - Firearms                                       3,000           4,000            4,000               1,000            33.33%
Fines - Parking Violations                               40,000         26,000          26,000             (14,000)         -35.00%

Total Police Department 397,052       513,603        513,603           116,551        29.35%

Public Works

3



5/1/2014

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2015 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY14 AND FY15 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED DIRECTIVE  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 14-15 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Community Cords 4,800           -                    -                       (4,800)           
State/Local Road Assistance                              440,000       440,000        440,000           -                    0.00%

Total Public Works 444,800       440,000        440,000           (4,800)           -1.08%

Total Municipal 10,710,337  11,256,313   12,390,584      1,680,247     15.69%

School Department
Reg Secondary Tuition                                    134,266       134,266        134,266           -                    0.00%
SOS Tuition                                              90,000         90,000          90,000             -                    0.00%
Adult Ed Tuition                                         93,800         93,300          93,300             (500)              -0.53%
State Subsidy for Education                              18,976,018  19,339,405   19,291,333      315,315        1.66%
Debt Service Reimbursement                               1,161,010    1,119,906     1,119,906        (41,104)         -3.54%
PreK/CDS 55,000         55,000          55,000             -                    0.00%
Special Ed/Mainecare                                     125,000       125,000        125,000           -                    0.00%
State Agency Clients                                     30,000         30,000          30,000             -                    0.00%
State Aid for Adult Education                            96,246         98,500          98,500             2,254            2.34%
Miscellaneous                                            98,506         98,506          98,506             -                    0.00%
Daycare Rent 50,000         50,000          50,000             -                    0.00%
Fund Balance 856,882       906,882        906,882           50,000          0.00%
Total School 21,766,728  22,140,765   22,092,693      325,965        1.50%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - Municipal 10,710,337  11,256,313   12,390,584      1,680,247     15.69%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - School 21,766,728  22,140,765   22,092,693      325,965        1.50%
Total Non-Property Tax Revenue 32,477,065  33,397,078   34,483,277      2,006,212     6.18%

Total Proposed Budget - Municipal 36,140,508  37,717,863   37,717,863      1,577,355     4.36%
Total Proposed Budget - School 37,128,028  38,241,323   38,241,323      1,113,295     3.00%
Total Proposed Budget 73,268,536  75,959,186   75,959,186      2,690,650     3.67%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - Municipal 25,430,171  26,461,550   25,327,279      (102,892)       -0.40%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - School 15,361,300  16,100,558   16,148,630      787,330        5.13%
Total Property Tax Dollars Needed 40,791,471  42,562,108   41,475,909      684,438        1.68%

4



Manager Council Directive Manager's
Proposed Proposed Ammended

FY 14 FY 15 FY 14 FY 15 FY 14 FY 15
Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase
12.77 13.28 0.51 12.77 12.35 ‐0.42 12.77 12.63 ‐0.14

City Budget
$150,000 Home 1,915.50$         1,992.00$          76.50$     1,915.50$      1,852.50$               (63.00)$         1,915.50$      1,894.50$     (21.00)$          

Proposed Proposed Proposed
FY 14 FY 15 FY 14 FY 15 FY 14 FY 15

Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase
7.66 8.20 0.54 7.66 8.05 0.39 7.66 8.05 0.39

School Budget
$150,000 Home 1,149.00$         1,230.00$          81.00$     1,149.00$      1,207.50$               58.50$           1,149.00$      1,207.50$     58.50$           

Proposed Proposed Proposed
FY 14 FY 15 FY 14 FY 15 FY 14 FY 15

Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase Tax Rate Tax Rate Increase
20.43 21.48 1.05 20.43 20.40 ‐0.03 20.43 20.68 0.25

Combined Budget
$150,000 Home 3,064.50$         3,222.00$          157.50$  3,064.50$      3,060.00$               (4.50)$            3,064.50$      3,102.00$     37.50$           

Impact of Proposed Budget on Tax Rate



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE XX-XXXX2014 

 
RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve of the 

City of Auburn for the fiscal year 2014-2015, which includes the amounts appropriated herein and revenues 

from all sources beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015. 

 

The estimated aggregate amount of non-property tax revenue is $33,349,006 with a municipal revenue 

budget of $11,256,313 and a School Department revenue budget of $22,092,693. 

 

 The aggregate appropriation for the City of Auburn is $76,126,790, with a municipal budget of 

$35,838,587 County budget of $2,046,880 and a School Department budget of $38,241,323 which received 

School Committee approval on April 30, 2014, and school budget approved at the May 19, 2014 Council 

Meeting pursuant to the School Budget Validation vote on June 10, 2014, in accordance with Maine Revised 

Statues, Title 20-A § 1486 and based on the budget submitted to the Auburn City Council on April 7, 2014, by 

the City Manager, and notification was posted on the City of Auburn website on May 2, 2014 that a public 

hearing would be held on May 5, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. and said hearing having been held on that date, and as 

amended by the City Council, the same is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year 2014-2015 beginning July 1, 

2014 for the lawful expenditures of the City of Auburn and the County of Androscoggin taxes, and said 

amounts are declared not to be in excess of the estimated revenue from taxation and sources other than taxation 

for the fiscal year of 2014-2015. 

 

SCHOOL BUDGET ARTICLES 

 

1. That $15,246,432.00 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 

2. That $7,962,668.00 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 

4. That $752,692.00 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 

5. That $4,402,306.00 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 

6. That $842,216.00 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 

7. That $1,284,149.00 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 

8. That $1,108,321.00 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 

9. That $3,512,020.00 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 

10. That $2,707,131.00 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other 

          Commitments; 

11. That $423,388 be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

12. That $37,817,935.00 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that 

$14,329,818.00 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 

from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in 

accordance with the Maine Revised Statues, Title 20-A, section 15688; 

 

Statutory Recommendation   $15,935,333 

City Council Adopted   $14,329,818 

 

Explanation:  The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the 

amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise 

in order to receive the full amount of state dollars. 

 

      13.  That $1,587,224.00 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 

approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-

funded portions of school construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the funds 

appropriated as the local share of the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 

from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12; 

 

Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual payments 

on the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects and minor capital 

renovation projects that are not approved for state subsidy.  The bonding of this long-term debt was 

previously approved by the voters or other legislative body. 

 

14. That $0.00 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690; 

 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the 

municipality’s local contributions to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and 

local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve 

the school department budget for education programs. 

 

15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $37,817,935.00 for the fiscal year  beginning July 1, 

2013 and ending June 30, 2014 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 

from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, 

non-state-funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the 

Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, 

state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools; 

 

16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $380,880.00 for adult education and raise $189,080.00 as the local 

share, with authorization to expend any additional incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest for 

the well-being of the adult education program; 

 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

17.  That the City of Auburn raise and appropriate $42,5808.00 for the services of Community Services-

Crossing Guards. 

 

18. That in addition to amount approved in the preceding articles, the school committee be authorized to 

expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources 

during the fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not 

require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated; 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council deems it necessary to adopt a budget which exceeds the 

percent increase of the Consumer Price Index Urban as of December 31, 2013, and hereby waives the 

provisions of Section 2-485 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE XX-XXXX2014 (Amendments) 

 
Whereas the City Manager has presented the Fiscal Year 2015 City Manager Recommended Budget on April 

7
th

, 2014; and 

 

Whereas the City Council has held the charter required Public Hearing on May 5
th

, 2014; and 

 

Whereas the City Manager is proposing the following amendments to the fiscal year 2015 budget; 

 

We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items to the City Budget: 

 

Amend the Department of Public Services, Environmental Program to increase expenditures by $96,900 

to sustain and expand curbside recycling; 

Be it further amended to state that it is the policy of the City of Auburn to implement a curbside 

automated recycling and solid waste program with a City Ordinance of solid waste and recycling 

no later than June 30
th

, 2015. 

 

 Amend the Department of Finance, Administration Program to reduce training by $500; 

 

Amend the Revenues of the City of Auburn, Department of Finance, to increase revenues by $5,000 for 

new required fees for lien fillings at Androscoggin County registry of deeds; 

 

Amend the Department of City Clerk to decrease expenditures by $23,946 eliminating the switchboard 

information position; 

 

Amend the Department of City clerk to decrease expenditures by $5,650 to reduce training, mileage 

reimbursement, office supplies, and records restoration; 

 

Amend the Department of Fire to expand into the program of EMS transport by decreasing expenditures 

by $73,000 to fire operations, increase expenditures by $565,780 to implement EMS transport and 

increase revenue by $797,760 for EMS transport collections; 

 

Amend Health and Social Services to last year’s funding level a decrease of expenditures of $38,399 

(this does intentionally under budget but per statute overages are allowed); 

 

Amend Fringe Benefits for Medical consulting to decrease expenditures by $30,000; this sustains 

investing in a medical consultant at a reduced rate that will yield long-term health savings; 

 

Amend the ICT budget to decrease expenditures by $4,500 to eliminate Council laptop initiative; 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Amend the Library budget to reduce annual expenditures by $12,846;   

 

Amend the Parking Program of the City and Police Budget to initiate greater use of revenues by $55,000 

and institute a non-sworn model for parking enforcement; 

 

Amend Police Department Budget to eliminate the shared funding with Lewiston for Animal Control 

decreasing expenses by $15,142; 

 

Amend the Vehicle Purchases for the Police department to only one new cruiser purchased in this 

budget, decreasing expenses by $94,000; 

 

Amend the Police Department to delay purchases of special equipment (radar) decreasing expenses by 

$49,500; 

 

Amend Police Department revenues to utilize $45,000 of federal drug seizure money; 

 

Amend Public Services Budget to reduce operating expenditures by $99,300, leaving money in the 

budget for spring clean up, herbicide program and mowing at Oak Hill Cemetery; 

 

Amend all intergovernmental departments to flat funding; 

 

Amend all City Departments decreasing expenditures by $335,000 for staff reductions, attrition, or 

retirements to be implemented by the City Manager; 

 

Amend the operational CIP requested items to decrease expenditures by $187,427, leaving a total of 

$165,863.  

 

Amend the Revenues from Recreation Program Fund to increase by $41,720 to fund the cost of the 

recreation program leader from program income; 

 

  
 









  
Page 1 

 
  

MEMO            

          
TO: Clint Deschene, City Manager     

 

FROM:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk   

 

RE: Business Licensing – pre-packaged foods 

 

Date: April 17, 2014 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Currently, we do not license businesses that sell pre-packaged foods, nor has it been our 

past practice to do so, however in our current business licensing chapter under the 

definitions it states (Food service establishment) “FSE class G (Off Premise Retailer) 

means a food service establishment engaged in processing, storing, serving or selling 

food for consumption off premises.” This would include but not be limited to Rite-Aid, 

CVS, TJ Maxx, Dollar Tree, Family Dollar Inc, Kmart, Bert’s Awesome Stuff, Bed Bath 

& Beyond, Hungry Maine Moose, and more.    

 

We checked with the City of Lewiston and with the City of South Portland to find out if 

they were also licensing these types of businesses and found that they are. A while ago, I 

also consulted with Michael Stoltz of Maine Municipal Association to get a legal opinion 

on the language in the ordinance and he agreed that we should be licensing these 

businesses based on the current language in the ordinance.  

 

Our goal is to get these businesses licensed and in compliance by the end of this fiscal 

year. This would also increase our revenue by approximately $5,000-$6,000 per year. We 

will send letters notifying them that per City Ordinance, they will be required to submit 

an application and apply for a Food Service license. I wanted to be sure both you and 

Council were aware in the event that we may possibly receive some complaints. 



Food service establishment (FSE) means any person who prepares, sells, serves or packages food 
for consumption on premises within the corporate limits of the city, including but not limited to restaurants, 
luncheonettes, diners, snack bars, drive-ins and concession stands. The term "food service 
establishment," for the purpose of licensing, shall include any caterer doing business within the corporate 
limits of the city, any lessee or subtenant of any premises, business or dominant lessor (such as 
recreation or amusement areas, drive-in theaters, sports arenas or public exhibition halls) who prepares, 
serves, sells or packages food for consumption on the premises of any such business or dominant lessor, 
and any person, club or other establishment offering for sale malt, spirituous or vinous liquors for 
consumption on the premises. The city issues licenses for the following types of food service 
establishments:  

(1) Class I—Liquor—Beer, wine and spirits, and mixed drinks. 

(2) Class III—Liquor—Wine. 

(3) Class III/IV—Liquor—Beer and wine. 

(4) Class IV—Liquor—Beer. 

(5) Class On or Off Premises—No liquor. 

(6) Bottle Club/BYOB. 

(7) Temporary Food Service Establishment—Per event, maximum of 30 days. 

(8) Off Premises Retailer. 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:     Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Update and Additional Funding of the Downtown Transportation Center 

 

Information:  

The Council requested status updates on the project prior to funding additional costs. Enclosed is a current 

rendering and a current schedule of the project which still needs to be updated. 

 

The scheduled update is pending negotiations with Hannaford and the City Manager. The City Manager and 

Hannaford have a meeting on May 2, 2014. The City Manager will have a verbal update as to the results of 

the meeting and how it is impacted the project schedule. 

 

Finally, the City of Auburn has committed $250,000 toward this project. Based on estimated construction 

costs we will have a potential shortfall. To ensure the project is completed in accordance with City Council 

directive we are requesting an additional amount of up to $150,000 to be taken from TIF funds per the 

estimate received from the architect. 

 

Financial: $250,000 has been committed thus far and we will be seeking additional funds of up to $150,000 

from TIF revenue. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion/action 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: 4/22/2014 City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments:    

Order 34-04222014   

Council Meeting Date:  May 5, 2014 Order  34-04222014 

Author:   Clinton Deschene 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 34-04222014 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council authorize the City Manager to expend an additional amount up to 

$150,000 for the Transportation Center to be built on Spring St. These funds will come from TIF revenue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: 2014 Action Plan of the Community Development Block Grant Program and HOME Investment 

Partnerships Program 

 

Information:  The budget discussions occurred at the City Council workshops of March 17 and 31. 

Final Budget (see attached sheets)  

Community Development Block Grant $1,346,171  

HOME Investment Partnerships Program/Auburn grant $509,800 

HOME Investment Partnerships Program/Lewiston grant  $485,947  

 

 

Financial: Annual allocation of Community Development and HOME funds from U. S. Department of Housing 

and Urban Development 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Adoption of Budget and Annual Action Plan 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: March 17 and March 31, 2014 

 

 

 

Attachments: Budget sheets and City of Auburn Program Year 2014-2015 Annual Action Plan 

Council Workshop Date:  May 5, 2014 Order  37-05052014 

Author:   Reine Mynahan, Community Development Director 

























































































































Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 37-05052014 

 
ORDERED, by the Auburn City Council that the 2014 Action Plan be adopted as recommended by Community 

Development staff. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Adopting the School Budget for Fiscal Year 2015 

 

Information:  
M.R.S.A. Title 20-A requires municipalities to conduct a school budget validation referendum election each year and 

it must be held on or before the 30th calendar day following the scheduled date that the City Council approves the 

school budget. The election date has been scheduled for June 10, 2014 and the soonest date Council can approve the 

school budget is May 12, 2014. 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Consider adoption of the FY14-15 School Budget as presented and approved 

by the School Committee at the next City Council meeting. 
 

Previous Meetings and History: 3/20/2014 Joint meeting, 4/28/2014 workshop 

 

Attachments:  

 Notice to voters 

 Expenditure Article Detail  

 Order 38-05052014 

Council Meeting Date:  May 5, 2014 Order  38-05052014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 





Updated 4/30/14

 

The REGULAR INSTRUCTION article The SPECIAL EDUCATION article The CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION The OTHER INSTRUCTION article STUDENT & STAFF SUPPORT includes The SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION article 

includes costs directly related to the includes costs for students receiving article includes costs for instructional includes costs to provide students with costs to facilitate and enhance instruction. includes costs for activities concerned 

interaction between teachers and services other than those provided by activities designed to prepare students learning experiences not included under Guidance Services with establishing and administering policy

students in a learning environment for regular programs. for careers and further education beyond other educational programs.   Salaries & Benefits 856,706 and operation of the school

purposes of the delivery of instruction.  high school.    Purchased Services 2,950 administrative unit.

      Supplies & Equipment 2,580  

Regular Programs Special Education Programs Career & Technical Co-Curricular Programs Health Services Board of Education  

  Salaries & Benefits 9,736,774   Salaries & Benefits 5,854,675   Student Support Services 0   Salaries & Benefits 86,253   Salaries & Benefits 276,513   Salaries & Benefits 4,522

  Substitutes 184,508   Purchased Services 2,094,385   Instruction 0   Purchased Services 34,546   Purchased Services 5,675   Purchased Services 96,011

  Purchased Services 330,700   Supplies & Equipment 13,608   Operation & Maintenance 0   Supplies & Equipment 19,352   Supplies & Equipment 8,775   Supplies & Equipment 6,446

  Supplies & Equipment 355,301   School Administration 0 Extra-Curricular Programs Other Student Support Services Superintendent's Office

K-2 Programs   Salaries & Benefits 311,139   Salaries & Benefits 6,460   Salaries & Benefits 463,462

  Salaries & Benefits 2,954,912   Purchased Services 69,747   Purchased Services/SROs 206,834   Purchased Services 5,400

  Supplies & Equipment 44,019   Supplies & Equipment 166,102   Supplies & Equipment 4,071   Supplies & Equipment 7,224

English-Second Language Other Instructional Programs Improve of Instruction/Staff Training Business Office

  Salaries & Benefits 599,234   Salaries & Benefits 54,053   Salaries & Benefits 1,202,222   Salaries & Benefits 200,973

  Purchased Services 7,000   Purchased Services 11,000   Purchased Services 110,876   Purchased Services 46,690

  Supplies & Equipment 1,540   Supplies & Equipment 500   Supplies & Equipment 35,616   Supplies & Equipment 11,488

Alternative Education Post Secondary Instruction Library Services Other Central Services

  Salaries & Benefits 734,878   Salaries & Benefits   Salaries & Benefits 370,159   Salaries & Benefits 0

  Purchased Services 8,706   Supplies & Equipment   Supplies & Equipment 38,472   Purchased Services 0

  Supplies & Equipment 8,495 Instructional Technology   Supplies & Equipment 0

Gifted & Talented Programs   Salaries & Benefits 647,368

  Salaries & Benefits 258,424     Purchased Services 80,195

  Purchased Services 5,350   Supplies & Equipment 451,167  

  Supplies & Equipment 16,591 Student Assessment

  Salaries & Benefits 57,867

  Supplies & Equipment 37,800

15,246,432 7,962,668 0 752,692 4,402,306 842,216

 

The SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION article The TRANSPORTATION AND BUS article The FACILITIES MAINTENANCE article The DEBT SERVICE AND OTHER The ALL OTHER article includes costs for The TOTAL PRE-KINDERGARTEN TO

includes costs for the administrative includes costs for conveying students includes costs for keeping the physical COMMITMENT article includes costs for the obligations that arise from fulfilling the purposeGRADE 12 EDUCATION article is the 

responsibility of individual schools. to and from school. plant open, comfortable and safe for use. principal and interest payments on long of the school administrative unit. These costs total budget article that authorizes the

  It also includes keeping the grounds, term debt of the school administrative unit may include a school nutrition program or school administration to raise and expend 

  buildings and equipment in working and payment of new school construction. support of such, support of community servicefor the school year.

  condition.  programs, private school services  

School Administration Transportation  Maintenance/Custodial Debt Service All Other Total Expenses

  Salaries & Benefits 1,208,886   Salaries & Benefits 1,525   Salaries & Benefits 1,219,738   Principal 2,288,060   Food Service Transfer 0   Regular Instruction 15,246,432

  Purchased Services 18,965   Purchased Services 783,870   Purchased Services 973,995   Interest 419,071   School Nutrition Expenses 0   Special Education 7,962,668

  Supplies & Equipment 56,298   Supplies & Equipment 312,926   Supplies & Equipment 1,318,287 Other Commitments   Community Service 0   CTE Instruction 0

Out of District Transportation Capital Enhancement & Improvement   Salaries & Benefits 0   Non Public School Services 0   Other Instruction 752,692

  Salaries & Benefits   Salaries & Benefits 0   Purchased Services 0   Student & Staff Support 4,402,306

  Purchased Services 10,000   Purchased Services 0   Supplies & Equipment 0   System Administration 842,216

  Supplies & Equipment   Supplies & Equipment 0   School Administration 1,284,149

Capital Renewal & Renovation   Transportation & Buses 1,108,321

  Salaries & Benefits 0   Facilities Maintenance 3,512,020

  Purchased Services 0   Debt & Other Commitments 2,707,131

  Supplies & Equipment 0   All Other Expenditures 0

1,284,149 1,108,321 3,512,020 2,707,131 0 37,817,935

Plus Adult Ed & Crossing Guides 423,388       

Total Budget 38,241,323  

E X P E N D I T U R E S   What the Auburn City Council Proposed to Spend on Education from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015

ARTICLE #1 ARTICLE #2 ARTICLE #3 ARTICLE #4 ARTICLE #5 ARTICLE #6

To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District

will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for

REGULAR INSTRUCTION SPECIAL EDUCATION CAREER & TECHNICAL OTHER INSTRUCTION STUDENT & STAFF SUPPORT SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends

$15,246,432 $7,962,668 $0 $752,692 $4,402,306 $842,216

ARTICLE #7 ARTICLE #8 ARTICLE #9 ARTICLE #10 ARTICLE #11 SUMMARY ARTICLE

To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District To see what sum the District

will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for will be allowed to EXPEND for

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION TRANSPORTATION & BUSES FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DEBT & OTHER COMMITMENTS ALL OTHER TOTAL PRE-K - 12 EDUCATION

Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends Board of Directors Recommends

$1,284,149 $1,108,321 $3,512,020 $2,707,131 $0 $37,817,935

4/30/2014  4:50 PM



Tizz Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

      ORDER 38-05052014 

 
Ordered that the Auburn City Council hereby adopts and approves the following School Budget articles for 

Fiscal Year 2014/2015. 
 

1. That $15,246,432.00 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 

 

2.  That $ 7,962,668.00 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 

 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 

 

4.  That $   752,692.00 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 

 

5.  That $4,402,306.00 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 

 

6. That $   842,216.00 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 

 

7. That $1,284,149.00 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 

 

8. That   1,108,321.00 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 

 

9. That  $3,512,020.00 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 

 

10. That $ 2,707,131.00 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other Commitments; 

 

11. That $    423,388.00- be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 

 

12. That $37,817,935.00 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that  

$14,329,818.00 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 

Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance 

with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688;  

 

      Statutory Recommendation $ 15,935,333 

      City Council Adopted  $14,329,818 

 

Explanation:  The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-kindergarten 

to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the amount of money 

determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise in order to receive the 

full amount of state dollars. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

13. That $1,587,224.00 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 

approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects or non-state-funded 

portions of school construction projects, in addition to the funds appropriated as the local share of the city’s 

contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12; 

 

Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual payments on 

the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects that are not approved for state 

subsidy. The bonding of this long-term debt was previously approved by the voters or other legislative 

body. 

 

14. That $0.00 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, §15690; 

 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the 

municipality’s local contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre- kindergarten to 

grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and local amounts raised for 

the annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve the school department 

budget for education programs. 

 

 

15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $37,817,935.00 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 

2014 and ending June 30, 2015 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 

Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, non-state-funded 

school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 

20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, state subsidy and other receipts for 

the support of schools; 

 

16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $380,880.00 for adult education and raise $189,080.00 as the local 

share, with authorization to expend any additional incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest and for the 

well-being of the adult education program; 

 

17. That the City of Auburn raise and appropriate $42,508.00 for the services of Community Services-

Crossing Guards. 

 

18. That in addition to amounts approved in the preceding articles, the school committee be authorized to 

expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources during the 

fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not require the 

expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated; 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: ADOPTION OF AUBURN FIRE DEPARTMENT TRANSPORT PLAN 

 

Information: Adopt the proposal of the Auburn Fire Department to assume EMS 911 transport service. 

 

Financial: See proposed budget and detail. 

 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Approve EMS transport proposal and implementation timeline. 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 RESOLVE 04-06032013 brought before Council on August 16, 2013 directing the auburn Fire 

department to develop an operational plan for the provision of EMS transport within the city of Auburn. 

 Council update on meetings and discussions with UAS as directed provided on March 6, 2014. 

 Formal discussion of EMS proposal before Council on April 14, 2014 with direction to develop finalized 

proposal and program to bring back before Council for final consideration. 

 

 

Attachments:  

Council Meeting Date May 5, 2014 Order  39-05052014 

Author:   Fire Chief Frank Roma 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 39-05052014 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby recognizes and supports the proposal of the Auburn Fire 

Department to implement EMS 911 transport within the city of Auburn, and; 

 

THAT the Auburn Fire Department will utilize its existing facilities that are strategically located, and it’s 

personnel that are trained and equipped to provide to provide Advanced Life Support emergency services within 

the community, and; 

 

That such a program will reflect best practices in the pre-hospital care field, be adequately staffed and equipped 

therefore increasing and enhancing service to the community and quality of life, and; 

 

THAT the Auburn City Council hereby directs the City Manager to authorize the Auburn Fire Department to 

begin preliminary implementation plans to have an EMS transport service ready to go into service no later than 

90 days after the adoption of the FY 15 budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Vacating a Portion of Foss Street 

 

Information: A portion of Foss Street, a paper street created back in the 1920's, was acquired by Westfield Inc. 

via a quick claim deed in 2012 from the City of Auburn, with the expectation that the sale of the paper street 

would terminate a part of Foss Street as a public street.  That area was then incorporated into a larger lot, which 

became the site for a proposed Family Dollar Store.  The Planning Board approved the Family Dollar Store at it 

March 11, 2014 meeting.  During the review process, it was discovered that an additional process would be 

needed to comply with Section 3027 of Maine Revised Statutes regarding vacating a paper street in order to 

completely remove all insipient public and private access rights.  The developer of the Family Dollar Store, 

Hunt Real Estate Services, has agreed to take responsibility of this process (legal and notification costs). 

 

The vacation process will require the filing of a petition to vacate a portion of Foss Street with the County 

Registry of Deeds and to notify all property owners and mortgagees of record for the Foss Farm subdivision, 

which included the paper street “Foss Street”.  Any property owner or mortgagee who is notified would have 

the right to appeal the petition to vacate the paper street.  The developer has notified property owners but still 

needs to create a revised notification list that includes mortgagees. (See Attachment 4) 

 

Financial: No Fiscal Impact 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Approval of order to vacate a portion of Foss Street.  City Clerk will file 

notice to vacate Foss Street with Androscoggin Registry of Deeds.  The developer will be responsible for 

notifying all owners and mortgagees of record.  Staff hopes to confirm adequate notice has been provided to 

mortgagees prior to Monday’s meeting. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: This item was presented at a Council Work Session on April 22, 2014.  The 

Auburn Planning Board was notified of the notice to Vacate Foss Street at their April 8, 2014. 

 

Attachments:  

1. Petition to vacate Foss Street (PID# 207-079) page 1 of attachments 

2. Information packet from the Engineering Department describing Foss Street, the process of vacating the 

paper street and an subdivision map from 1924, with the Foss St. area marked.  pages 2-5 

3. A prelinary site plan for Family Dollar Store showing how Foss St. fits into the development. pg. 6 

4. List of property owners to be notified in the "Foss Street" subdivision. pg. 7 

5. Copy of quick claim deed of a portion of Foss Street from City of Auburn to Westfield Inc. pg. 8 

Council Meeting Date:  May 5, 2014 Order  40-05052014 

Author:   Doug Greene, City Planner 



















Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 40-05052014 

 

   

TITLE:  ORDER – VACATION OF PROPOSED UNACCEPTED WAY  

    FOSS STREET CONANT ESTATE, SECTION 2 

 
Ordered that, whereas notice has been given to the owners and mortgagees of record of the lots on the plan entitled 

“Revised Plan of the Foss Farm,” dated October 3, 1941 and recorded at the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds in 

Plan Book 7, Page 372, and to the Auburn Planning Board in accordance with Section 3027 of the Maine Revised 

Statutes, the following described portion of Foss Street, a proposed way shown on the plan, is hereby vacated. 

 

Description of way vacated: 

 

The portion of Foss Street between the southerly side of Minot Avenue and the northerly line of Swett Avenue.  

 

Appended hereto and hereby incorporated as Exhibit A to this Order is a list of all the names of the owners of lots shown 

on said plan together with their mortgagees of record. 

 

No damages are to be paid. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	0  Agenda 05-05-2014
	1  Workshop Info Sheet Spring Street Area Zoning 5.5.14
	1a  Spring Street Area Future Land Use Map
	1b  Spring Street Existing Zoning Map
	1c  Spring Street Area Planning Board Recommended Zoning
	1d  Planning Board Staff Report for Downtown Traditional Business District
	2  Workshop info sheet DATCfundingrequest17apr14
	2a  DATC w cable bracing
	2b  Council timeline 5-3-14
	2c  Public Notice DATC 5-5-2014
	2d  Order 34-04222014 Transportation Center increase in funding
	3  Workshop Info Sheet Budget
	3a  EMS - United Ambulance
	3b  EMS Funding recommendations 05012014 (2)
	3bb  Recycling Summary 5 5 14 kv (2)
	3c  final city manager amended  fy 15
	3d  Tax rate impact due to proposed budget
	3e  DRAFTAnnual Appropriation Resolve 2014-15
	3f  Amendments to Appropriation Resolve
	5  Minutes 4-22-2014
	6  MEMO-business licenses - pre-packaged foods
	6a  City Manager's report - Food service establishment definition
	7  Agenda info sheet DATCfundingrequest17apr14
	7a  Order 34-04222014 Transportation Center increase in funding
	9  Agenda Info Sheet FFY2014 Action Plan 5-2014
	9a  CDBG 2014 Annual Action Plan
	9b  Order 37-05052014 2014 Action Plan
	10  Agenda Info Sheet school budget
	10a  2014-15 Bdgt Validation Referendum signed
	10b  Expenditure Article Detail
	10c  Order 38-05052014 School  Bgt FY14-15#1
	11  Agenda Info Sheet for May 5 2013 EMS
	11b  Order 39-05052014 for EMS Transport
	12  Agenda Info Sheet - Vacate Foss St Rev  5-1-14
	12a  Foss St
	12b  Order 40-05052014 Vacating Foss Street

